
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Online at http://www.iisd.ca/cites/cop16/
Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)Vol. 21 No. 80 Tuesday, 12 March 2013

Earth Negotiations Bulletin=

#8
CoP16

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Catherine Benson, Kate Harris, Resson Kantai, Kate Neville, 
Ph.D. and Tanya Rosen. The Digital Editor is Francis Dejon. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting 
Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the European Commission (DG-ENV), 
the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal 
Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), and the Government of Australia. General Support for the Bulletin 
during 2013 is provided by the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, 
the Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the 
Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Specific funding for coverage of 
this meeting has been provided by UNEP. Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French has been provided by the Government of France, the 
Belgium Walloon Region, Québec, and the International Organization of the Francophone (OIF and IEPF). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are 
those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate 
academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, 
+1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11D, New York, NY 10022 USA. The ENB team at CITES CoP16 can be contacted by e-mail at <tanya@iisd.org>.

http://enb.iisd.mobi/

CITES COP16 HIGHLIGHTS:
MONDAY, 11 MARCH 2013

Committee I discussed shark and manta ray proposals, 
agreed by vote, and a sawfish proposal, accepted by consensus. 
Committee II addressed: amendment of the Appendices; 
compliance and enforcement issues; leopard quotas; Tibetan 
antelope; hawksbill turtle; freshwater turtle and tortoises; and 
sturgeon and paddlefish. Working Groups on rhino, annotations, 
conflict of interests and musical instruments met during lunch.

COMMITTEE I
PROPOSALS TO AMEND APPENDICES I AND II: 

Carcharhinus longimanus: COLOMBIA introduced the 
proposal (CoP16 Prop.42) to include Carcharhinus longimanus 
(oceanic whitetip shark) on Appendix II, with an annotation to 
delay the entry into effect by 18 months to resolve technical and 
administrative issues. She underscored the proposal is justified 
by scientific criteria, outlining agreement among organizations 
including the Food and Agriculture Organization of the UN 
(FAO). 

BRAZIL and the US supported the proposal as co-proponents. 
IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member States and 
Croatia, LIBERIA, the BAHAMAS, NORWAY, REPUBLIC 
OF CONGO, VENEZUELA, NIGERIA, MALI, SENEGAL, 
GUINEA and BENIN, among others, also supported the 
proposal.

Others opposed the listing, including JAPAN, CHINA, 
SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES, GRENADA, 
SINGAPORE and the INTERNATIONAL COALITION OF 
FISHERIES ASSOCIATIONS.

BRAZIL, HONDURAS and NEW ZEALAND emphasized 
the species meets the biological criteria for listing in Appendix 
II, with BRAZIL noting a 2012 finding Carcharhinus 
longimanus had declined by 86%.

The proponents and AUSTRALIA stressed that action by 
CITES would complement measures by Regional Fisheries 
Management Organizations (RFMOs). AUSTRALIA 
underscored her country’s success in species-level identification 
of sharks, including the oceanic whitetip, and said non-detriment 
findings (NDFs) can be made to allow continued trade in sharks 
while ensuring their sustainable management.

On implementation, NEW ZEALAND emphasized that 
financial and technical support would be available for capacity 
building. IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member States 
and Croatia, announced it has provided €1.2 million to support 
capacity building. NIGERIA welcomed the availability of 
identification guides and offers of capacity-building assistance 

for developing countries. Stressing that parties have a range of 
tools for regulating international trade, REPUBLIC OF THE 
CONGO said concerns about monitoring mechanisms should not 
be used as an argument for rejecting the proposal. 

The BAHAMAS said sharks are protected in their Exclusive 
Economic Zone (EEZ) but are targeted in international waters. 
SENEGAL emphasized support for listing of the oceanic 
whitetip shark expressed by Western and Central African states 
at regional meetings. BENIN stated an Appendix II listing would 
better control international trade and support food security. 

CHINA underscored that opposition to a CITES listing does 
not indicate a lack of concern about shark conservation and 
sustainable management. 

THAILAND called attention to management measures for 
sharks developed by RFMOs. JAPAN noted doubts that an 
Appendix II listing would complement the work of RFMOs and 
expressed concern about implementation and bycatch. CHINA 
also raised concerns about implementation and enforcement of 
an Appendix II listing, including, among other things, a lack 
of stock assessment models in some regions, which would 
compromise robust NDFs, and challenges in identification of 
mixed shipments of fins.

SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES expressed 
concern that the proposed listing did not fully consider the 
negative impacts on livelihoods of coastal communities. 
SINGAPORE commented generally on all three sharks proposals 
(CoP16 Prop.42-44), opposing the inclusion of commercially 
exploited aquatic species under CITES, and doubted effective 
implementation would be possible, pointing to concerns, inter 
alia, about requirements for introduction from the sea.

FAO cautioned that benefits of the listing would depend on its 
effective implementation. 

PEW ENVIRONMENT GROUP, speaking on behalf of 
WWF, International Fund for Animal Welfare (IFAW) and The 
Wildlife Conservation Society (WCS) supported the proposal.

As there was no consensus, the Committee put the proposal to 
vote by secret ballot, as requested by Japan and supported by at 
least 10 parties. The proposal passed, with 92 for, 42 against and 
8 abstentions. Several parties publicly announced their votes.

Sphyrna lewini, S. mokarran and S. zygaena: BRAZIL 
introduced the proposal (CoP16 Prop.43) to include Sphyrna 
lewini (scalloped hammerhead shark) on Appendix II with an 
annotation to delay the entry into effect by 18 months, with S. 
mokarran (great hammerhead shark) and S. zygaena (smooth 
hammerhead shark) included as look-alike species. He said S. 
lewini is a low productivity species whose populations have 
declined worldwide and said the proposal will complement 
current RFMO measures. 



Tuesday, 12 March 2013   Vol. 21 No. 80  Page 2
Earth Negotiations Bulletin

 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Many spoke in favor of the proposal. MEXICO, IRELAND, 
on behalf of the EU and its Member States and Croatia, 
HONDURAS, COLOMBIA, COSTA RICA and ECUADOR 
supported the proposal as co-proponents, with many stressing 
unregulated international trade in fins. 

Noting the importance of shark catch for coastal communities, 
MEXICO said 90% of its production is national. IRELAND, 
on behalf of the EU and its Member States and Croatia, and 
COLOMBIA noted Sphyrna’s importance for tourism.

COMOROS, ARGENTINA and NEW ZEALAND, among 
others, supported the proposal. SIERRA LEONE highlighted the 
West Africa Subregional Fisheries Commission’s support for the 
listing. NEW ZEALAND noted the decline of S. lewini might 
even qualify it for inclusion in Appendix I. She emphasized 
the listing would likely have a positive impact on food and 
livelihoods for subsistence fisheries, by reducing illegal, 
unreported and unregulated (IUU) fishing. The US underscored 
that an Appendix II listing does not affect domestic fisheries and 
trade. FAO stressed, inter alia, that IUU fishing remains a threat 
to the species. 

Several parties spoke against the proposal, including the 
Southern African Development Community (SADC), CHINA, 
INDIA and JAPAN.

NAMIBIA raised concern that the listing of these three species 
would lead to the inclusion of other hammerhead shark species 
on Appendix II as lookalike species. GHANA, on behalf of the 
Ministerial Conference on Fisheries Cooperation among African 
States Bordering the Atlantic Ocean (COMHAFAT ATLAFCO), 
noted concerns about the socio-economic implications of the 
listing. CHINA highlighted implementation concerns, stating 
these are even more challenging for hammerhead species than 
for the oceanic whitetip shark. INDIA stated that information on 
Indian Ocean stocks for hammerhead sharks is inadequate and 
unreliable.

JAPAN raised concerns with a CITES listing, including: 
implementation challenges, including monitoring of small-scale 
fishing vessels; challenges for some countries in conducting 
NDFs, leading to a de facto trade ban for those countries; and 
identification problems for customs officers.

Noting a lack of consensus, the Committee proceeded to a 
vote by secret ballot, as requested by CHINA. The proposal 
passed, with 91 in favor, 38 against and 8 abstaining. More than 
ten parties announced their vote for the official record.

Lamna nasus: IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its 
Member States and Croatia, introduced the proposal (Cop16 
Prop.44) to list Lamna nasus (porbeagle shark) on Appendix 
II. He noted L. nasus meets the biological criteria for listing, as 
recognized by IUCN, TRAFFIC and the FAO Expert Panel.

EGYPT, COMOROS and BRAZIL supported the proposal 
as co-proponents. Among others, EL SALVADOR, REPUBLIC 
OF CONGO, CANADA, NEW ZEALAND, LIBERIA, the US, 
PERU, BURKINA FASO, COLOMBIA, MALI, SENEGAL, 
HONDURAS, ARGENTINA, the DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC 
OF CONGO and WWF, also on behalf of IFAW, Wild Aid and 
Pew Environment Group supported the proposal.

Noting implementation concerns, IRELAND, on behalf 
of the EU and its Member States and Croatia, supported by 
BRAZIL, stressed the porbeagle is primarily fished by developed 
countries and the listing will not result in additional burdens for 
developing countries. He concluded that, despite assurances at 
previous CoPs that RFMOs will manage L. nasus, RFMOs have 
not yet done so.

CANADA commended implementation of measures by the 
EU to protect the porbeagle, noting indications of recovery of 
the Northwest Atlantic stock, and said an Appendix II listing can 

support and complement RFMO efforts. He said decisions taken 
on introduction from the sea would help CITES implement this 
listing.

NEW ZEALAND, supported by IRELAND, on behalf of the 
EU and its Member States and Croatia, provided information not 
included in the listing proposal. On Southern stocks, he noted 
examples of their substantial decline. Stressing that it is not 
sufficient for one country to manage this species, SENEGAL 
urged African states, particularly on the western and Atlantic 
coast, to support the proposal and ensure enforcement.

FAO reported that the majority of the FAO Expert Panel 
agrees the species meets the biological criteria for Appendix II.

Many opposed the proposal, including ICELAND, CHILE, the 
GAMBIA, REPUBLIC OF KOREA, MOZAMBIQUE, on behalf 
of SADC, MOROCCO and CREATIVE CONSERVATION 
SOLUTIONS. THAILAND called for a full stock assessment of 
the Southern hemisphere prior to a decision on listing. CHINA 
pointed to implementation challenges. JAPAN opposed, noting: 
major fisheries targeting porbeagle are well-managed; incidental 
take is not a major threat to the species; the species as a whole 
does not meet Appendix-II listing criteria; and identification 
challenges would confuse customs officials.

The Committee then voted by secret ballot, as requested by 
GUINEA. The proposal passed, with 93 in favor, 39 against and 
8 abstaining. More than 20 parties stated that they voted yes. 
DENMARK said it voted yes but noted that Greenland opposed 
the proposal.

Pristis microdon: AUSTRALIA introduced the proposal 
(CoP16 Prop.45) to transfer Pristis microdon (freshwater 
sawfish) from Appendix II to Appendix I. She explained the 
Pristidae family is listed on Appendix I with the exception 
of P. microdon, and said the species warrants greater CITES 
protection. She added the transfer to Appendix I would improve 
enforcement for all Pristidae species.

Among others, SIERRA LEONE, INDONESIA, INDIA, 
the US, KENYA, COSTA RICA, DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC 
OF THE CONGO, SAMOA, HUMANE SOCIETY 
INTERNATIONAL and SSN, on behalf of Shark Advocates 
International, Project AWARE, WCS, the German Elasmobranch 
Society and Shark Trust supported the proposal.

JAPAN asked for further details on the benefits of uplisting. 
AUSTRALIA clarified the proposal would address look-alike 
concerns for other listed species, reinforce its domestic export 
ban and deter traders anticipating future legal international trade. 
JAPAN said he was not convinced, but did not wish to block 
consensus.

Committee I accepted the proposal.
Manta: ECUADOR introduced the proposal (CoP16 Prop.46) 

to include the Genus Manta (manta rays) in Appendix II with 
an annotation to delay its entry into effect, noting the genus 
is distinct from other rays and underscoring its low rates of 
reproduction and high vulnerability to growing trade in gill 
plates. BRAZIL and COLOMBIA, as co-proponents, supported 
the proposal, with BRAZIL underscoring that local fishing 
communities do not depend on manta rays for food or income. 
COLOMBIA, supported by SOUTH AFRICA, reiterated that 
Manta conservation may benefit local communities through 
ecotourism.

Many parties supported the proposal, including 
MOZAMBIQUE, on behalf of SADC, IRELAND, on behalf 
of the EU and its Member States and Croatia, URUGUAY, 
LIBERIA, THAILAND, SOUTH AFRICA and QATAR. 
AUSTRALIA and the US recognized data gaps, but said the 
species’ vulnerability justified the precaution of listing. 



Vol. 21 No. 80  Page 3     Tuesday, 12 March 2013
Earth Negotiations Bulletin

 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

The Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of 
Wild Animals (CMS) informed that Manta are listed on CMS 
Appendix I and that 112 CITES parties are also CMS parties.

CAMBODIA and CHINA opposed the proposal, saying 
scientific data was insufficient. JAPAN questioned the 
complementarity of CITES and RFMOs on manta rays, noting 
the proponents had not raised the need for conservation measures 
under the relevant RFMOs. 

FAO said, inter alia, that: it was unable to identify reliable 
information to assess against decline or population criteria or to 
comment on projected trends; and trade is an important driver for 
targeted fisheries.

The Committee voted by secret ballot, as requested by 
Cambodia. The proposal passed, with 96 in favor, 23 against and 
7 abstaining. Many parties announced their votes. 

COMMITTEE II
AMENDMENT OF THE APPENDICES: Annotations 

– Report of the Plants Committee and Development and 
application of annotations: PC Chair Clemente-Muñoz 
introduced the document (CoP16 Doc.76 (Rev.1)), highlighting 
CoP recommendations on: orchids; the review of annotations 
for Cactaceae and Orchidaceae; and the annotations to the 
Appendices for plants.

The US introduced the document (CoP16 Doc.75 (Rev.1)), 
highlighting challenges associated with developing and 
implementing annotations. 

Several countries expressed support for some of the 
proposed revisions and draft decisions. CANADA, supported 
by AUSTRALIA, noted the SC Working Group on Annotations 
should complete its activities before developing new procedures. 
IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member States and 
Croatia, supported simplifying procedures. 

Chair Gabel established a working group on these two agenda 
items, joined by CANADA, AUSTRALIA, the US, GERMANY 
and the UK, on behalf of the EU and its Member States and 
Croatia, INDONESIA and the PC Chair.

LEOPARD QUOTAS: SOUTH AFRICA introduced the 
document (CoP16 Doc.52 (Rev.1)) and the proposed revisions 
and draft decisions to Resolution Conf.10.14 (Rev.CoP14) on 
quotas for leopard hunting trophies and skins for personal use. 
She noted textual amendments suggested by the Secretariat.
CONSERVATION FORCE suggested that the proposed changes 
to tag and quota information on export permits for leopard 
skins should also apply to elephant and crocodile trophies, and, 
supported by TANZANIA, proposed an intersessional working 
group. The US stated that the proposed amendments mirror 
the tagging requirements in the resolution on crocodilians 
(Resolution Conf.11.129 (Rev.CoP15)). IRELAND, on behalf of 
the EU and its Member States and Croatia, inter alia, requested 
clarification on whether the term “harvest quota” included 
leopards killed in defense of humans or livestock. INDIA, 
NAMIBIA and TANZANIA supported the proposed revisions 
and draft decisions.

    Committee II accepted the document with the Secretariat’s 
amendments. It also requested IRELAND, on behalf of the EU 
and its Member States and Croatia, CONSERVATION FORCE 
and other interested parties to draft a decision directing the 
SC to monitor progress and implementation and to explore 
the applicability to other species of the tagging and reporting 
changes to leopard export permits.

TIBETAN ANTELOPE: The Secretariat presented the 
document (CoP16 Doc.55). He noted that the SC had: reviewed 
enforcement measures taken by parties to eliminate illegal trade 
in Tibetan antelope products, as directed by Resolution Conf.11.8 
(Rev.CoP13); concluded poaching was “considerably reduced” 

from previous levels; and recommended deleting the reporting 
requirement from Resolution Conf.11.8 (Rev.CoP13). He stated 
that, since the document was prepared, several large seizures of 
products made from Tibetan antelope wool (shahtoosh) had been 
reported, indicating “significant” illegal trade. The Secretariat 
and SC therefore withdrew their recommendation.   

CHINA welcomed the withdrawal of the recommendation 
and proposed two new draft decisions. The first directs parties 
to bring seizures of illegal Tibet antelope wool and its products 
to the attention of the Secretariat, as well as to report progress 
on follow-up investigations. The second directs the Secretariat 
to report information about seizures and investigations to SC65. 
The Committee accepted the draft decisions proposed by China.

TORTOISES AND FRESHWATER TURTLES: Report 
of the Standing Committee: The US introduced the report 
(CoP16 Doc.58.1 (Rev.1)), highlighting the draft decisions 
designed, inter alia, to strengthen data collection, outreach and 
collaboration.

Report of the Animals Committee: The AC Chair introduced 
the document (CoP16 Doc. 58.2 (Rev.1) and noted several 
recommendations, including to communicate the result of a study 
on non-detriment findings (NDFs) to the SC. 

Chair Gabel proposed reconciling the two reports.
HAWKSBILL TURTLE: The Secretariat introduced the 

document (CoP16 Doc.59 (Rev.1)), noting that Decision 15.84 
on the hawksbill turtle has been implemented s that it can be 
deleted, but a number of recommendations arising from a 2009 
regional workshop remain to be implemented.

IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member States and 
Croatia, and JAMAICA welcomed the document. Committee II 
agreed to the document, its draft decisions and annex.

STURGEON AND PADDLEFISH: Report of Animals 
Committee: The AC Chair introduced the report (CoP16 
Doc.60.1 (Rev.1)), and explained the background of Resolution 
Conf.12.7 (Rev.CoP14) on conservation of and trade in sturgeons 
and paddlefish. 

The US, supported by IRAN, IWMC-WORLD 
CONSERVATION TRUST and IRELAND, on behalf of the EU 
and its Member States and Croatia, expressed concern about the 
Secretariat’s expansion of the definition of “mixed species” in 
the labeling of high-quality caviar. The US said it does not accept 
exports with the mixed code, and could not support expanding its 
use. With wide support for the Secretariat to provide an overview 
of molecular, DNA-based and other forensic methods that could 
assist in identifying the species in trade, the Committee agreed 
to delete the new definition of mixed species and accept the 
document.

Report of the Secretariat: The Secretariat introduced 
the report (CoP16 Doc.60.2 (Rev.1)) and the amendments to 
Resolution Conf.12.7 (Rev.CoP14) on conservation of and trade 
in sturgeons and paddlefish, stressing that the shift to aquaculture 
and captive breeding of sturgeons has reduced the need for 
establishing complex harvest and export quotas for specimens of 
wild origin. 

The US stated there was no evidence that shared stocks have 
recovered and asked the Secretariat to reinstate the deleted 
procedures. IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member 
States and Croatia, supported reference to SC61 Doc.48.2 with 
regard to range states’ monitoring and evaluation of stocks, while 
UKRAINE and IRAN, on behalf of AZERBAIJAN, did not 
support this reference, referring instead to the informal working 
group on sturgeons and paddlefish’s Inf.Doc.53. 

The Committee decided to suspend debate until Tuesday, 
12 March, after parties have reviewed Inf.Doc.53 and the 
Secretariat’s report.



Tuesday, 12 March 2013   Vol. 21 No. 80  Page 4
Earth Negotiations Bulletin

 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT: National laws 
for implementation of the Convention: The Secretariat 
introduced the document (CoP16 Doc.28). She reported on 
progress made by the Secretariat on facilitating, and parties 
on implementing, CITES-relevant legislation as described in 
Resolution Conf.8.4 (Rev.CoP15). 

   The US, inter alia, expressed concern about the “perpetual 
cycle” of parties failing to enact legislative plans and drafts 
submitted to the Secretariat. He also proposed textual 
amendments to exclude parties who have been party to the 
Convention for more than twenty years from claiming that 
exceptional circumstances prevented them from adopting 
appropriate measures for implementation. Numerous parties 
updated the Committee on the status of implementing CITES-
relevant national legislation, and requested financial or technical 
assistance. TANZANIA voiced concern about the time it takes 
enact legislation. CHINA supported the proposed draft decisions.

    The Committee formed a drafting group, composed of the 
US, IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its Member States and 
Croatia, and CHINA, to work on the amendments suggested by 
the US.

Enforcement matters: The Secretariat introduced the 
document (CoP16 Doc.29 (Rev.1)), highlighting that illegal trade 
in a number of CITES-listed species remains a growing problem. 
He introduced proposed revisions to Resolution Conf.11.3 (Rev.
CoP15) on compliance and enforcement along with its draft 
decisions.

The US supported the report and agreed to the proposed 
revisions and draft decisions, including the recommendations 
that parties increase efforts to combat wildlife crime. He 
proposed, inter alia, that in the application of Article XIII on 
CITES compliance procedures and the timeline for responding 
to a Secretariat’s request on a compliance matter, “one year” be 
changed to “six months.” IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its 
Member States and Croatia, welcomed the report and supported 
some of the US amendments. The IUCN Pangolin Specialist 
Group welcomed the attention of the report to illegal trade in 
pangolins, with LEWIS AND CLARK COLLEGE proposing 
language to address the scale of the trade, supported by the US 
and the PHILIPPINES, with some minor additions.

The Committee noted the report and accepted the proposed 
amendments to the resolution and draft decisions with 
amendments. Following this, KENYA asked that African 
pangolins be also considered. The Chair suggested Kenya raise 
this issue in plenary.

National Reports: The Secretariat and the UK, as Chair of 
the SC Working Group on Special Reporting Requirements, 
introduced the document on national reports (CoP16 Doc.30 
(Rev.1)), which contained, inter alia, harmonization of reporting 
and reduction of the reporting burden (Decision 14.38). He 
requested reports from Afghanistan, Equatorial Guinea, Grenada, 
Lesotho and the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia. 

CHINA welcomed the document, praising the use of modern 
technology to ease the reporting burden. On the development of 
the Annual Report Upload Facility, UNEP-World Conservation 
Monitoring Centre (WCMC) clarified that the available facility 
was a prototype, which would be completed, subject to funding, 
within two years. 

The Committee accepted the document with an amendment 
and a few minor deletions. Annex five on a new national report 
format under Article eight was returned to the Working Group 
for further consideration.

Disposal of illegally-traded and confiscated specimens of 
Appendix-I, -II and -III species: INDONESIA introduced the 
document (CoP16 Doc.31 (Rev.2)) and the draft decision (CoP16 
Doc.31 (Rev. 2) Annex). 

    HSI voiced concerns that sharing profits from selling 
confiscated specimens with the countries of origin enabled 
collusion between exporting states and traders in importing 
countries. JAMAICA, COLOMBIA, INDIA and IWMC-
WORLD CONSERVATION TRUST supported the draft 
decision, though INDIA expressed reservations about the 
repatriation of proceeds from sales of confiscated specimens. 
CHINA, the US, IRELAND, on behalf of the EU and its 
Member States and Croatia, ISRAEL, KENYA, SERBIA and 
LEWIS AND CLARK COLLEGE opposed the draft decision, 
citing, inter alia, potential negative impacts on law enforcement 
and conservation. The US, supported by IRELAND, on behalf of 
the EU and its Member States and Croatia, proposed drafting a 
new decision calling for a general review of existing resolutions. 
INDONESIA stated that the main purpose of its proposal was 
to improve communication between importing and exporting 
countries when a specimen is confiscated.    

    The Committee suspended discussions until the US, 
Indonesia and China could draft a new decision.

IN THE CORRIDORS
Despite some early morning grumbles from tired delegates 

after their work-filled “weekend,” participants turned quickly 
to business on Monday morning, with Committee II delving 
into what one described as the “dull but necessary details of the 
Convention.” The real excitement and passion flowed out of 
Committee I, with shouts of excitement heard down the halls 
as parties agreed (by vote) on shark and manta ray proposals. 
After Friday afternoon declarations that CoP16 was the “turtle 
CoP,” delegates reflected it might instead be the “marine CoP.” 
Obvious regional tensions on positions emerged, particularly 
among African nations, some of whom were accused by peers of 
deviating from agreed-upon positions. Despite such contention, 
cheers that followed the secret ballot overpowered the Chair’s 
voice, as she gamely tried to call on numerous countries seeking 
to announce their “yes” vote for the record, in a bid to promote 
transparency. A few delegates sagely pointed out that shouts of 
joy over listing a species were misplaced, saying such listings 
actually represent a failure among parties to conserve species or 
regulate trade. Still, one cautiously optimistic delegate said that 
if tomorrow’s discussions on timber go well, this CoP could be 
judged as a success, “provided parties return home and get down 
to the real business of CITES: implementation.”



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


